Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form C)

TheYard.gg, Inc.
72 E Jefferson St
Franklin, IN 46131
http://theyard.gg/

Up to $1,234,997.50 in Common Stock at $2.50
Minimum Target Amount: $10,000.00

A crowdiunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless
you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and
the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been
recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority.
Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities
offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any
offering document or literature,

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that these securities are
exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: TheYard.gg, Inc.

Address: 72 E Jefferson St, Franklin, IN 46131
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: July 12, 2022

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $10,000.00 | 4,000 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,234,997.50 | 493,999 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $2.50

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $250.00

“Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See Fonus info
below.
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Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the
“CEQ™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the
power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to, consistent with this instrument and on
behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and communications,
(iii) execute any instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in
the exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or
appropriate in the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest. Such proxy
and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the Subscriber is an individual, will
survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is
an entity, will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding
the Securities. However, the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment
underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities
Act of 1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a registration
statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses®

Loyalty Bonus

Time-Based:

Friends and Family Early Birds

Invest $250 within the first 48 hours and receive 20% bonus shares
Super Early Bird Bonus

Invest $250 within the first week and receive 15% bonus shares
Early Bird Bonus

Invest $250 within the first two weeks and receive 10% bonus shares



Amount-Based:
%500+ | Tier 1

Get your own GoPixls Account and T Shirt

$1,000+ | Tier 2

Get your own personalized GoPixls Jersey

$2,500+ | Tier 3
Shoutcast vour esports tournament

3% Bonus Shares

$5,000+ | Tier 4

Design your personalized METAVERSE AVATAR
3% Bonus Shares

$7,500 | Tier 5

Have your gameplay displayed on GoPixls

3% Bonus Shares

$10,000+ | Tier 6
Two hours video game play in a movie theater

4% Bonus Shares

$25,000 | Tier 7

Dinner out with a futurist

Have an in-depth experiential weekend

5% Bonus Shares

$100,000 | Tier 8

Have an online international tournament named after vou
Get a secondary part in a movie

5% Bonus Shares



“In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a singie investment in the same
offering that meets the minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks will not be granted if
an investor submits multiple investments that, when combined, meet the perk requirement. All
perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

The Yard will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by
investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they
purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at $2.50 / share,
vou will receive 110 shares of Common Stock, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $250. Fractional
shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the
nearest whole share,

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors’ eligibility period. Investors eligible for this
bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its
maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest should room in the offering
become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

Company Overview

TheYard.gg, Inc. ("The Yard" or the "Company”) provides existing communities with the tools and
platforms to create manageable, virtual community playgrounds in the metaverse. The Yard was
founded by media, video game, and telecommunications industry veterans. We believe that the
metaverse needs small manageable yards in order to facilitate play. The Yard is a virtual defined
space where users can meet up with their friends, play any game they want to play, learn and
advance, or just have fun and hang out. We provide separated platforms for both young and adult
gamers that provide them with an environment in the metaverse that is truly their own. In the
near future, through the integration of several platforms, technologies, and assets acquired by the
Company, community members will be able to use a single login to manage all their video gamer
data, their digital assets, their self-promotion through video production, and distribution, their
team and fan gear, and their coaching and educational development as it relates to video gaming
and traditional world activities. Because we build digital playgrounds for digital assets, the Yard is
well positioned to take advantage of trends in the merger of blockchain technologies and the video
gaming space through play to earn digital currency, game and traditional world-based NFTs, and
Web 3 advancements. The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Harena Data, Inc., ("Harena")
recently executed an agreement in which to bundle its streaming offering, GoPixls, with Iconic
Engine, a cutting-edge virtual reality platform.

Business Model

While the Company's newly-acquired and wholly-owned subsidiary, Harena, has been revenue
positive for several years and has been growing substantially, the Company anticipates that the
revenue will shift in the future. Historically a significant amount of revenue at Harena came from
Saas-based licensing of its platform and platform support services, moving forward, the Company
intends to move away from SaaS-based platform licensing and offer play platforms for free. The



Company will instead look to increase in-platform service offerings such as Discord-based
tournament play, educational offerings, and coaching and e-commerce services, and will also look
to increase management fees related to peer-to-peer gaming money pools and advertising revenue
derived from supported media distribution platforms, as well as consulting fees from community
partners. Eventually, the Company intends to derive revenue from the management of digital
asset exchanges and play-to-earn digital currency.

Intellectual Property

Harena, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, owns GYO and GYOScore and GYO.gg, GoPixls,
COGNISAT, and a number of other trademarks and websites as well as UMG, UMG.tv, and a
number of trademarked assets from UMG. Harena co-owns RUMBL and EQ both of which are the
ping balancing technologies for remote play that are co-owned with WTFast.

Corporate History and Structure

The Yard is a Delaware C-Corp that was incorporated on July 12, 2022, It acquired Harena (also a
Delaware C Corp.) in September 2022 through a reverse merger of its subsidiary into Harena. The
merger was filed on September 27, 2022, with the Secretary of State of Delaware. Other than the
merger agreement and the subscription agreements for its stock, the Company has no other
agreements.

The Yard is the parent company of Harena, a wholly-owned subsidiary that has been operated
under the Company since September 2022, The subsidiary company has pre-existing revenue
roughly equally divided between Saa5 recurring revenue for platform services, media-related
revenue, and e-commerce solutions. While Harena has been revenue positive and growing for the
past three years, it is not cash-flow positive and has a continuing obligation to pay Engine Media
for its acquisition of UMG. To date, the Company has provided $165,000 of funding to Harena to
meet its obligations but is under no obligation to do so.

Competitors and Industry

Industry

The world video gaming space is booming and has created a market for the ageregation of a large
number of gamers in a single metaverse. This creates significant revenue opportunities from
licensing, video creation, and distribution as well as ancillary services. With over 2.6 billion
gamers in the world, we want to provide "the" place where they all go to play, watch, and interact
as they advance and promote themselves and their clans.

According to statista.com, U.5. video game revenue will be greater than $90 billion in 2022 and
global revenue will be greater than $190 billion. According to verizon.com, there are currently
over 500 million global frequent and occasional viewers of video gaming globally with over 90% of
streaming viewership occurring on Twitch. Also according to verizon.com, over 200 U.S. colleges
and universities currently have scholarshiped varsity programs.

-https:Ainancesonline.com/number-of-gamers-worldwide/
-https:www.statista.comy/statistics/ 246892/ value-of-the-video-game-market-in-the-
us/#:~text=In%202022%2C%20the % 20video % 20game, new % 20all % 2Dtime % 20industry % 20record.
-https:/www.statista.com/statistics/292751/mobile-gaming-revenue-worldwide-
device/#:~:text=In%202022%2C%20mobilefs 20gamesf20are, U. 5. %6 20dollars 6 20in %6 20global % 20revenue
-https./www.verizon.comy/about/blog/esports-scholarships

Competitors

We believe The Yard is the only company that combines sanctioned play, peer-to-peer play, and



latency standardization for remote play that will also allow a gamer to use a single log-in to
manage all layer data and digital assets in one place in the future. There are numerous competitors
in the peer-to-peer space including, but not limited to, FACEIT, PropMe, Fandom Sports, and
others. There are similarly numerous competitors that offer various forms of tournament play
platforms and some elements of team management. There are also some companies that claim to
have latency-balancing technology.

But as previously stated, we are unaware of any competitor that provides a single login that offers
all of these platforms and technologies in a single space while also providing robust production
and distribution of gameplay to video outlets as well as e-commerce and educational solutions.

Current Stage and Roadmap

Current Stage

The Yard has acquired Harena (a sanctioned play platform for video gaming) which had recently
completed an acquisition of UMG (a peer-to-peer platform for video gaming). It should be noted
that both UMG and Harena can operate in traditional sports environments. The combined entities
also have full video production and distribution capabilities with over 230,000 Twitch viewers and
a platform available on Hulu and historical production for various game titles. The combined
companies also have a relationship with a latency balancing technology for remote play as well as
full team and fan-gear production and distribution capabilities, media production, and distribution
as well as a suite of educational assets.

The Company is brand new, but the companies it has acquired have: (1) over 2.5 million active
customer emails, 230,000 Twitch followers, and platforms available on Roku and game consoles;
(2) created what we believe to be the first pan-Canadian collegiate eSports conference, (3) support
the MEAC within the HBECU and are working towards the foundation of a MidWest based Heartland
conferences. In 2018, Harena founded what it believes to be the world’s first eSports Combine in
coordination with the Indiana Sports Corp. and was instrumental in facilitating over 550
scholarships for aspiring gamers.

Roadmap

The Company is focusing the assets of its subsidiary as a gamer-driven space in the metaverse to
play, store data, trade digital assets, and produce content. Each technology owned by Harena, the
Company's wholly-owned operating subsidiary, can operate on a stand-alone basis and the
Company will be developing mobile user interfaces for mobile access to gameplay across the
platforms. Additionally, the Company will be working on integrating the GoPixls platform into all
gameplay as the Company believes that its primary sources of revenue moving forward will be
advertising and subscription revenue to video distribution, money earned on deposits from peer-
to-peer play, and sales of e-commerce and educational products. The Company is moving away
from SaaS licensing of the platforms and wants play to be free for participants.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: Derek Pew
Derek Pew's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: CEO, President and Secretary (including work with prior entity Harena Data, Inc.)



Dates of Service: April, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Overall supervision of corporate activities. Derek receives an annual salary
of $60k from The Yard but has deferred his salary.

» Position: Board Director
Dates of Service: July, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the company's business operations, financial performance,
investments, and ventures. Supervises, guides, and delegates executives in their duties.
Ensures company policies and legal guidelines are clearly communicated.

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: HashWatt, Inc
Title: Chairman of the Board
Dates of Service: December, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Coordination of business strategy and implementation of that strategy.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Harena Data, Inc
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: January, 2018 - Present

Responsibilities: Harena Data, Inc is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Yard.gg. Responsible
for all corporate oversight.

Name: Bill Dever

Bill Dever’s current primary role is with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

# Position: Chief Strategy Officer and Treasurer (including work with prior entity Harena Data,
Inc.)
Dates of Service: April, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Overall supervision of corporate strategy and sales strategy. Bill receives an
annual salary of $90k.

» Position: Board Director
Dates of Service: July, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the company's business operations, financial performance,
investments, and ventures. Supervises, guides, and delegates executives in their duties.
Ensures company policies and legal guidelines are clearly communicated.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Harena Data, Inc
Title: Chief Creative Officer

Dates of Service: July, 2017 - Present

Responsibilities: Harena Data, Inc is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Yard.gg. Oversee
strategy and market placement for suite of eSportings and streaming solution sets.



Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: B Movie Celebration
Title: Founder
Dates of Service: March, 2007 - Present
Responsibilities: Film programmer and overseeing a slate of film festivals. Volunteer role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: Experiential Dynamics LLC
Title: President
Dates of Service: July, 2018 - November, 2022
Responsibilities: Overseeing general operations and film licensing.

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: USA DRIVE-INS
Title: Managing Partner
Dates of Service: May, 2011 - November, 2022
Responsibilities: Consulting and operations of motion picture theaters.

Name: Joseph A Reed

Joseph A Reed's current primary role is with RFI Ventures LLC. Joseph A Reed currently services
10 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

» Position: Board Director
Dates of Service: April, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the company's business operations, financial performance,
investments, and ventures. Supervises, guides, and delegates executives in their duties.
Ensures company policies and legal guidelines are clearly communicated. Joe does not
receive compensation.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Iteris, Inc (previously TrafficCast International, Inc)
Title: Chief Technology Officer

Dates of Service: July, 2014 - June, 2022

Responsibilities: Responsible for software development and operations of TrafficCast's 3
major lines of business DynaFlow, TrafficCarma, and BlueToad. Leading teams to build

innovative real-time traffic based consumer and B2B products and services across mobile,
web and APIs.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: RFI Ventures LLC
Title: President & CEQO

Dates of Service: May, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Provider of consultant and advisor services in the technology industry.



Name: Robert E Keith III

Robert E Keith IIT's current primary role is with Nouveau Capital, LLC. Robert E Keith III currently
services 10 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

» Position: Board Director
Dates of Service: April, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Member and Investor, provide guidance on strategy and financing.
Rob does not receive any compensation.

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: Nouveau Capital, LLC
Title: President
Dates of Service: January, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: Overseeing a family run investment firm

Name: Scott Molander

Scott Molander's current primary role is with SKINS™ Compression North America. Scott
Molander currently services 1-2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

» Position: Board Director
Dates of Service: July, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the company's business operations, financial performance,
investments, and ventures. Supervises, guides, and delegates executives in their duties.
Ensures company policies and legal guidelines are clearly communicated.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: SKINS™ Compression North America
Title: Managing Director
Dates of Service: November, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Bringing in foreign sports product and building the North American market.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: 500 FESTIVAL FOUNDATION
Title: Member Board of Directors
Dates of Service: October, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Board member representing the interests of locally-based motor sports
corporations.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Garage Living



Title: Managing Director
Dates of Service: August, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Day-to-day operation and marketing focus.

Other business experience in the past three years:

 Employer: Butler University
Title: Lecturer
Dates of Service: August, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Teaches entrepreneurship at Butley University

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: Fords Garage
Title: Regional Development Team
Dates of Service: June, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Develops work with a boutique restaurant-bar concept.

Other business experience in the past three years:

« Employer: PlayyOn
Title: Board Member
Dates of Service: April, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Board member for youth advocacy sports program.

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: SportsUNITED
Title: Senior Managing Director
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Acting as a consultant for a sports initiative.

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Employer: Ninel3sports
Title: Chairperson of the Board
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Volunteer role.,

Other business experience in the past three years:

 Emplover: Thrivent Financial
Title: Executive Chairman of the Board Mid-America Region
Dates of Service: August, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: The Executive chair is the presiding director of the Thrivent Member
Network Regional Board of Directors (“Board™).

Other business experience in the past three years:



o Employer: 500 Festival
Title: Member of the Board
Dates of Service: January, 2015 - October, 2021
Responsibilities: Member of the board for parade and other programming.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: ASB Sports
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: January, 2020 - November, 2020
Responsibilities: Help transitioned the company out of financial difficulty.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: YOUNG ACTORS THEATRE INC
Title: Board Member
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - November, 2019
Responsibilities: Board member to empower youth for life

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial
condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and
all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These include risks relating to economic
downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as hacking and
the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than
more developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when
deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as "we”, "us”, “our”, or “Company”) involves a
high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford the loss of their entire
investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Common Stock should only be undertaken by
persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid
investment. Each investor in the Company should consider all of the information provided to such
potential investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the
other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not intended, and
shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial and other risks inherent in
the investment in the Company.

3

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product, that people think it’s a
better option than a competing product, or that we will able to provide the service at a level that
allows the Company to make a profit and still attract business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are
valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially
startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk overpaying for your investment.



The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC limitations
of transfer. This means that the stock/note that vou purchase cannot be resold for a period of one
year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the stock back to the Company, to an
“accredited investor,” as part of an offering registered with the Commission, to a member of your
family, trust created for the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months
following vour investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities you
receive, More importantly, there is no established market for these securities and there may never
be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a
buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing plaver in the gaming and technology
industry. However, that may never happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing
money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering Common Stock in the amount of up to $1,235,000 in this offering, and
may close on any investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company
is likely to need additional funds in the future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds
for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it
may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it
will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be reqguired to raise more capital,

We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital requirements as we
grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult environment for obtaining credit on
favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it, we could be forced to raise additional
equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may
require bringing on additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing
our equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership percentage
would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable to find additional
investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will choose to cease our sales
activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a return on your investment could be
our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of
credit could result in the Company performing below expectations, which could adversely impact
the value of your investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future,
which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common 5tock. Interest on debt securities
could increase costs and negatively impact operating results. Preferred stock could be issued in
series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to
raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to
the holders of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more
favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management
team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of this Offering. The use of
proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current business plan. We, however, may
find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved for one category



to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational
performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best estimate of the probable
results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by our independent accountants. These
projections will be based on assumptions which management believes are reasonable. Some
assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate
family members

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the company (or
their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments
will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign page.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational products

It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may never be
used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the product is the result of a
change in business model upon the Company’s making a determination that the business model,
or some other factor, will not be in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties

We are currently in the research and development stage and have only manufactured a prototype
for our product. Delays or cost overruns in the development of our product and failure of the
product to meet our performance estimates may be caused by, among other things, unanticipated
technological hurdles, difficulties in manufacturing, changes to design and regulatory hurdles.
Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our operating performance and results of
operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them. However, you
will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have agreed to appoint the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEQ™), or his or her successor, as your voting proxy. You
are trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will grow your
investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our Company, vou will only be paid out
if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our Company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company

You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority holder, and
therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good business decisions that grow
your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating needs and
fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get nothing. Even if we sell all
the common stock we are offering now, the Company will (possibly) need to raise more funds in
the future, and if it can't get them, we will fail. Even if we do make a successful offering in the
future, the terms of that offering might result in vour investment in the company being worth less,
because later investors might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings, ” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the
benefit of information that later investors have.



Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the
escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose subscription
agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All early-stage companies are subject
to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommon for material changes to be made to
the offering terms, or to companies’ businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice.
When such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form
C with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right
to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose subscriptions have
already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have no such right.

Qur new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising and
marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at a faster rate than
our current products have. It is possible that our new products will fail to gain market acceptance
for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to achieve significant sales and acceptance in
the marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact the value of your investment.,

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on the market
and/or various respective product development programs. They may have much better financial
means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They may succeed in developing and
marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products than those
developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors will render our technology or
products obsolete or that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly
developed technologies. It should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are competing against other recreational activities

Although we are a unique company that caters to a select market, we do compete against other
recreational activities. Our business growth depends on the market interest in the Company over
other activities.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

Thevard.gg was formed on July 12, 2022, Accordingly, the Company has a limited history upon
which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be made. Our current and
proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises. These
include likely fluctuations in operating results as the Company reacts to developments in its
market, managing its growth and the entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to
pay dividends on any shares once our directors determine that we are financially able to do so.
Thevard.gg has incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There
is no assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 vears or generate sufficient revenues to pay
dividends to the holders of the shares.

We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively no revenue. If you are investing
in this company, it's because you think that out product is a good idea, that the team will be able
to successfully market, and sell the product or service, that we can price them right and sell them
to enough peoples so that the Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and
there is no assurance that we will ever be profitable.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective
Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is possible that
competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find prior art to invalidate it,
or render the patents unenforceable through some other mechanism. If competitors are able to
bypass our trademark and copyright protection without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the



Company’s value will be materially and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s
ability to compete in the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might be able to
raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential revenue stream for the
Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing them
Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we believe that a
competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights, we might choose not to
file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a multi-year litigation with an
uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of enforcing our trademark(s) or
copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of
losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could
have adverse consequences for the Company, including undermining the credibility of our
intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts
to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in the Company
could be significantly and adversely atfected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly
gualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successtul, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day operations. As the
Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional employees in sales, marketing, design,
development, operations, finance, legal, human resources and other areas. Depending on the
economic environment and the Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract
qualified individuals for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes,
which can be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the incorrect
individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are unable to attract, hire
and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it is likely our business will suffer
from not having the right employees in the right positions at the right time. This would likely
adversely impact the value of vour investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us, including
manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations, advertising, retailing, and
distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties will fail to perform their services or will
perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is possible that we will experience delays, defects,
errors, or other problems with their work that will materially impact our operations and we may
have little or no recourse to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other
suppliers’ operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the data of our
investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any significant disruption in
service on theyard.gg or in its computer systems could reduce the attractiveness of the platform
and result in a loss of investors and companies interested in using our platform. Further, we rely
on a third-party technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology. Any disruptions
of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on theyard.gg could harm our
reputation and materially negatively impact our financial condition and business.

We may not be able to sustain our rapid growth, effectively manage our anticipated future growth
or implement our business strategies.
We have a limited operating history as a gaming-focused content and entertainment platform,



and have experienced substantial growth in the last 12 months due, in large part, to the
acquisitions we completed during the year ended December 51, 2021. However, recent growth
rates may not be indicative of our future performance due to our limited operating history and the
rapid evolution of our business model. We may not be able to achieve similar results or accelerate
growth at the same rate as we have organically or following the completion of our recent
acquisitions and we may not achieve our expected results, all of which may have a material and
adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, our rapid growth
and expansion have placed, and continue to place, significant strain on our management and
resources. This level of significant growth may not be sustainable or achievable at all in the future.
We believe that our continued growth will depend on many factors, including our ability to
develop new sources of revenues, diversify monetization methods including our direct to
consumer offerings, attract and retain competitive gamers and creators, increase engagement,
continue developing innovative technologies, tournaments and competitions in response to
shifting demand in online gaming, increase brand awareness, and expand into new markets. We
cannot assure you that we will achieve any of the above, and our failure to do so may materially
and adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We are subject to risks associated with operating in a rapidly developing industry and a relatively
new market.

Many elements of our business are unique, evolving and relatively unproven. Our business and
prospects depend on the continuing development of gaming-focused entertainment and content
creation. The market for gaming-related content has grown significantly in recent years and
continues to rapidly develop, which may present significant challenges. Our business relies upon
our ability to cultivate and grow a robust community of creators and audience members, and our
ability to successfully monetize such community through digital subscriptions, and advertising
and sponsorship opportunities. In addition, our continued growth depends, in part, on our ability
to respond to rapid technological evolution, continued shifts in gamer trends and demands,
frequent introductions of new games and titles and the constant emergence of new industry
standards and practices. Developing and integrating new games, titles, content, products, services
or infrastructure could be expensive and time-consuming, and these efforts may not yield the
benefits we expect to achieve at all. We cannot assure you that we will succeed in any of these
aspects or that the esports gaming industry will continue to grow as rapidly as it has in the past.

Our revenue model may not remain effective and we cannot guarantee that our future
monetization strategies will be successfully implemented or generate sustainable revenues and
profit.

We generate revenues from advertising within our platform and through our service offerings, and
through the operation of our live streaming platform using a revenue model whereby users and
creators can get free access to certain live streaming content, and gamers and creators pay fees to
compete in league competition. We have generated, and expect to continue to generate, a
substantial portion of revenues using this revenue model in the near term. We are, however,
particularly focused on implementing a direct to consumer model for our expanding user base.
Although our business has experienced significant growth in recent years, there is no guarantee
that our direct to consumer packages will gain significant traction to maximize our growth rate in
the future, as the demand for our offerings may change, decrease substantially or dissipate, or we
may fail to anticipate and serve user demands effectively.

Our marketing and advertising efforts may fail to resonate with gamers and creators.

Our service offerings are marketed through a diverse spectrum of advertising and promotional
programs such as online and mobile advertising, marketing through websites, event sponsorship
and direct communications with our user community including via email, blogs and other
electronic means. An increasing portion of our marketing activity is taking place on social media
platforms that are either outside, or not totally within, our direct control. Changes to user



preferences, marketing regulations, privacy and data protection laws, technology changes or
service disruptions may negatively impact our ability to reach target users and creators. Our
ability to market our service offerings is dependent in part upon the success of these programs. If
the marketing for our service offerings fails to resonate and expand with both the gamer and
metaverse community, or if advertising rates or other media placement costs increase, our
business and operating results could be harmed.

The online gaming industry is very “hit” driven. We may not have access to “hit” games or titles.
Select game titles dominate competitive online gaming, and many new games titles are regularly
introduced in each major industry segment (console, mobile and PC free-to-download). Despite
the number of new entrants, only a very few “hit” titles account for a significant portion of total
revenue in each segment. The size and engagement level of our users are critical to our success
and are closely linked to the quality and popularity of the game publishers with which we have
licenses. Game publishers on our platform, including those who have entered into license
agreements with us, may leave us for other gaming platforms which may offer better competition,
and terms and conditions than we do. Furthermore, we may lose our licenses with certain game
publishers if we fail to generate the number of gamers and creators to our amateur tournaments
and competitions expected by such publishers. In addition, if popular game publishers cease to
license their games to us, or our live streams fail to attract gamers and creators, we may
experience a decline in gamer traffic, direct to consumer opportunities and engagement, which
may have a material and adverse impact on our results of operations and financial conditions.
Although we have entered into multi-year agreements with certain publishers, if we fail to license
multiple additional "hit” games or any of our existing licensed game publishers with which we
currently have a license decide to breach the license agreement or choose not to continue with us
once the term of the license agreement expires, the popularity of our tournaments, competitions
and content generated across our platforms may decline and the number of our users and creators
may decrease, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

We have not entered into definitive license agreements with certain game publishers that we
currently have relationships with, and we may never do so.

We currently do not have definitive license agreements in place with game publishers for the use
of certain of the game titled played on our platform, as these publishers currently permit us to
integrate the specifications of the game title with our technology. We may not ever enter into
license agreements with these parties in the future, instead continuing our relationship with these
game publishers without a license agreement. These game publishers may unilaterally choose to
discontinue their relationship with the Company, thereby preventing us from offering experiences
on our platform using their game titles, as the case may be. Should those game publishers choose
not to allow us to offer experiences involving their respective game titles to our users, the
popularity of our amateur city leagues, tournaments and competitions may decline and the
number of our users and creators may decrease, which could materially and adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

If we fail to keep our existing users and creators highly engaged, to acquire new users and creators,
to successfully implement a direct to consumer model for our user community, our business,
profitability and prospects may be adversely affected.

Our success depends on our ability to maintain and grow the number of users and creators using
our platform, and keeping our users and creators highly engaged. Of particular importance is the
successful deployment and expansion of our direct to consumer model to our user community for
purposes of creating predictable recurring revenues. In order to attract, retain and engage users
and creators and remain competitive, we must continue to develop and expand our product
offerings, including internationally, produce engaging tournaments and competitions, successfully
license the newest “hit” esports games and titles, implement new technologies and strategies,



improve features of our platform and stimulate interactions in our user community. A decline in
the number of our users and creators in our ecosystem may adversely affect the engagement level
of our users and creators, the vibrancy of our user community, or the popularity of our platform,
which may in turn reduce our monetization opportunities, and have a material and adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations. If we are unable to attract and
retain, or convert users and creators into direct to consumer-based paying users and creators, our
revenues may decline, and our results of operations and financial condition may suffer. We cannot
assure you that our platform will remain sufficiently popular with users and creators to offset the
costs incurred to operate and expand it. It is vital to our operations that we remain sensitive and
responsive to evolving user preferences and offer first-tier content that attracts our users and
creators. We must also keep providing users and creators with new features and functions to
enable superior content viewing, and social interaction. Further, we will need to continue to
develop and improve our platform and to enhance our brand awareness, which may require us to
incur substantial costs and expenses. If such increased costs and expenses do not effectively
translate into an improved user experience and direct to consumer-based, long-term engagement,
our results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

The ability to grow our business is dependent in part on the success and availability of mass media
channels developed by third parties, as well as our ability to develop commercially successful
content.

The success of our business is driven in part by the commercial success and adequate supply of
third-party mass media channels for which we may distribute our content, including Twitch,
YouTube and ESL.tv. Our success also depends on our ability to accurately predict which channels
and platforms will be successful with the online gaming community, our ability to develop
commercially successful content and distribute via SLG.TV, which is presently available on Twitch,
amateur tournaments and competition for these channels and gaming platforms and our ability to
effectively manage the transition of our users and creators from one generation or demographic to
the next. Additionally, we may enter into certain exclusive licensing arrangements that affect our
ahility to deliver or market our live and on-demand content on certain channels and platforms. A
channel or platform may not succeed as expected or new channels or platforms may take market
share and users and creators away from platforms for which we have devoted significant
resources. If demand for the channels or platforms for which we are developing is lower than our
expectations, we may be unable to fully recover the investments we have made, and our financial
performance may be harmed. Alternatively, a channel or platform for which we have not devoted
significant resources could be more successful than we initially anticipated, causing us to not be
able to take advantage of meaningful revenue opportunities.

If we fail to maintain and enhance our brand or if we incur excessive expenses in this effort, our
business, results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

We believe that maintaining and enhancing our brand is of significant importance to the success
of our business. A well-recognized brand is important to increasing the number of users and
creators and the level of engagement of our overall user community which is critical in enhancing
our attractiveness to advertisers and sponsors. Since we operate in a highly competitive market,
brand maintenance and enhancement directly affect our ability to maintain and enhance our
market position. Although we have developed our brand through word of mouth referrals, key
strategic partners and our esports game publisher licensors, as we expand, we may conduct
various marketing and brand promotion activities using various methods to continue promoting
our brand. We cannot assure you, however, that these activities will be successful or that we will
be able to achieve the brand promotion effect we expect. In addition, anv negative publicity in
relation to our service offerings, or operations, regardless of its veracity, could harm our brands
and reputation. Negative publicity or public complaints from users and creators may harm our
reputation, and if complaints against us are not addressed to their satisfaction, our reputation and
our market position could be significantly harmed, which may materially and adversely affect our



business, results of operations and prospects.

Negative perceptions about our brand, platforms, tournaments or competitions and/or business
practices may damage our business and increase the costs incurred in addressing gamer concerns.
Expectations regarding the quality, performance and integrity of our service offerings are high.
Users and creators may be critical of our brand, platform, content, service offerings, tournaments
or competitions and/or business practices for a wide variety of reasons. These negative user
reactions may not be foreseeable or within our control to manage effectively, including user
reactions to content via social media or other outlets, components and services, or objections to
certain of our business practices. Negative user sentiment about our business practices also can
lead to investigations from regulatory agencies and consumer groups, as well as litigation, which,
regardless of their outcome, may be costly, damaging to our reputation and harm our business.

Technology changes rapidly in our business and if we fail to anticipate or successfully implement
new technologies or adopt new business strategies, technologies or methods, the guality,
timeliness and competitiveness of our offered services may suffer.

Rapid technology changes require us to anticipate, sometimes years in advance, which
technologies we must develop, implement and take advantage of in order to be and remain
competitive in both the content-creation and delivery market, as well as the esports gaming
market. We have invested, and in the future may invest, in new business strategies including
within metaverse gaming, a direct to consumer model, technologies, products, or games or first-
tier game titles to continue to persistently engage the user and deliver the best user experience.
Such endeavors may involve significant risks and uncertainties, and no assurance can be given
that the technology we choose to adopt and the features that we pursue will be successful. If we do
not successfully implement these new technologies, our reputation may be materially adversely
affected and our financial condition and operating results may be impacted. We also may miss
opportunities to adopt technology, or develop technologies, products, or services that become
popular with users and creators, which could adversely affect our financial results. It may take
significant time and resources to shift our focus to such technologies, putting us at a competitive
disadvantage. Our development process usually starts with particular user experiences in mind,
and a range of technical development and feature goals that we hope to be able to achieve. We
may not be able to achieve these goals, or our competitors may be able to achieve them more
gquickly and effectively than we can based on having greater operating capital and personnel
resources. If we cannot achieve our technology goals within the original development schedule,
then we may delay their release until these goals can be achieved, which may delay or reduce
revenue and increase our development expenses. Alternatively, we may be required to
significantly increase the resources employed in research and development in an attempt to
accelerate our development of new technologies, either to preserve our launch schedule or to keep
up with our competitors, which would increase our development expenses.

Our new services and changes to existing services could fail to attract or retain users or generate
revenue and profits.

Our ability to retain, increase, and engage our user base and to increase our revenue depends
heavily on our ability to continue to evolve our existing services and to develop successful new
services, both independently and in conjunction with developers or other third parties. We may
introduce significant changes to our existing services or acquire or introduce new and unproven
services, including using technologies with which we have little or no prior development or
operating experience. For example, we do not have significant experience with virtual or
augmented reality technology, which may adversely affect our ability to successfully develop and
market our offerings within these technologies. We continue to incur substantial costs, and we
may not be successful in generating profits, in connection with these efforts. In addition, the
introduction of new services, or changes to existing services, may result in new or enhanced
governmental or regulatory scrutiny, litigation, or other complications that could adversely affect



our business and financial results. We have also invested, and expect to continue to invest,
significant resources in growing our service offerings to support increasing usage of such
products. If our new or enhanced services fail to engage users, marketers, or developers, or if our
business plans are unsuccessful, we may fail to attract or retain users or to generate sufficient
revenue, operating margin, or other value to justity our investments, and our business may be
adversely affected.

We may not be successful in our metaverse gaming strategy and investments, which could
adversely affect our business, reputation, or financial results.

We believe the metaverse, an embodied internet where people have immersive experiences
beyond two-dimensional screens, is the next evolution in social technology. Our business strategy
focuses on offerings within metaverse gaming. We expect this will be a complex, evolving, and
long-term initiative that will involve the development of new and emerging technologies,
continued investment in privacy, safety, and security efforts, and collaboration with other
companies, developers, partners, and other participants. However, the metaverse may not develop
in accordance with our expectations, and market acceptance of features, products, or services we
build for the metaverse is uncertain. In addition, we have limited experience with virtual and
augmented reality technology, which may enable other companies to compete more effectively
than us. We may be unsuccessful in our research and product development efforts, including if we
are unable to develop relationships with key participants in metaverse gaming or develop products
that operate effectively with metaverse gaming technologies, products, systems, networks, or
standards. Our metaverse gaming efforts may also divert resources and management attention
from other areas of our business. In addition, as our metaverse gaming efforts evolve, we may be
subject to a variety of existing or new laws and regulations in the United States and international
jurisdictions, including in the areas of privacy and e-commerce, which may delay or impede the
development of our products and services, increase our operating costs, require significant
management time and attention, or otherwise harm our business. As a result of these or other
factors, our metaverse gaming strategy and investments may not be successful in the foreseeable
future, or at all, which could adversely affect our business, reputation, or financial results.

We may experience security breaches and cyber threats.

We continually face cyber risks and threats that seek to damage, disrupt or gain access to our
networks and our platform, supporting infrastructure, intellectual property and other assets. In
addition, we rely on technological infrastructure, including third party cloud hosting and
broadband, provided by third party business partners to support the in person and online
functionality of our platform. These business partners are also subject to cyber risks and threats.
Such cyber risks and threats may be difficult to detect. Both our partners and we have
implemented certain systems and processes to guard against cyber risks and to help protect our
data and systems. However, the techniques that may be used to obtain unauthorized access or
disable, degrade, exploit or sabotage our networks and platform change frequently and often are
not detected. Our systems and processes, and the systems and processes of our third-party
business partners, may not be adequate. Any failure to prevent or mitigate security breaches or
cyber risks, or respond adequately to a security breach or cyber risk, could result in interruptions
to our platform, degrade the user experience, cause users and creators to lose confidence in our
gaming platform and cease utilizing it, as well as significant legal and financial exposure. This
could harm our business and reputation, disrupt our relationships with partners and diminish our
competitive position. Successful exploitation of our networks and platform can have other
negative effects upon the user experience we offer. In particular, the virtual economies that exist
in certain of our licensed game publishers’ games and developers’ outside platforms, such as
Roblox, are subject to abuse, exploitation and other forms of fraudulent activity that can
negatively impact our business. Virtual economies involve the use of virtual currency and/or
virtual assets that can be used or redeemed by a user within a particular online game or service.



Our business could be adversely affected if our data privacy and security practices are not
adequate, or perceived as being inadeguate, to prevent data breaches, or by the application of data
privacy and security laws generally.

In the course of our business, we may collect, process, store and use gamer and other information,
including personally identifiable information, passwords and credit card information, the latter of
which is subject to PCI-DSS compliance. Although we take measures to protect this information
from unauthorized access, acquisition, disclosure and misuse, our security controls, policies and
practices may not be able to prevent the improper or unauthorized access, acquisition or
disclosure of such information. The unauthorized access, acquisition or disclosure of this
information, or a perception that we do not adequately secure this information could result in
legal liability, costly remedial measures, governmental and regulatory investigations, harm our
profitability and reputation and cause our financial results to be materially affected. In addition,
third party vendors and business partners receive access to information that we collect. These
vendors and business partners may not prevent data security breaches with respect to the
information we provide them or fully enforce our policies, contractual obligations and disclosures
regarding the collection, use, storage, transfer and retention of personal data. A data security
breach of one of our vendors or business partners could cause reputational harm to them and/or
negatively impact our ability to maintain the credibility of our user community. Data privacy, data
protection, localization, security and consumer-protection laws are evolving, and the
interpretation and application of these laws in the United States, Europe (including compliance
with the General Data Protection Regulation), and elsewhere often are uncertain, contradictory
and changing. It is possible that these laws may be interpreted or applied in a manner that is
averse to us or otherwise inconsistent with our practices, which could result in litigation,
regulatory investigations and potential legal liability or require us to change our practices in a
manner adverse to our business. As a result, our reputation and brand may be harmed, we could
incur substantial costs, and we could lose both users and creators and revenue.

We depend on servers to operate our service offerings with online features and our proprietary
online platform. If we were to lose server functionality for any reason, our business may be
negatively impacted.

Qur business relies on the continuous operation of servers, some of which are owned and operated
by third parties. Although we strive to maintain more than sufficient server capacity, and provide
for active redundancy in the event of limited hardware failure, any broad-based catastrophic
server malfunction, a significant service-disrupting attack or intrusion by hackers that
circumvents security measures, a failure of disaster recovery service or the failure of a company on
which we are relying for server capacity to provide that capacity for whatever reason could degrade
or interrupt the functionality of our platform, and could prevent the operation of our platform for
both in-person and online user experiences. We also rely on networks operated by third parties to
support content on our platform, including networks owned and operated by game publishers. An
extended interruption to any of these services could adversely affect the use of our platform,
which would have a negative impact on our business. Further, insufficient server capacity could
also negatively impact our business. Conversely, if we overestimate the amount of server capacity
required by our business, we may incur additional operating costs.

Our online platform and services offered through our platform may contain defects.

Our online platform and the services offered through our platform are extremely complex and are
difficult to develop and distribute. We have quality controls in place to detect defects in our
platform before they are released. Nonetheless, these quality controls are subject to human error,
overriding, and reasonable resource or technical constraints. Further, we have not undertaken
independent third-party testing, verification or analysis of our platform and associated systems
and controls. Therefore, our platform and quality controls and preventative measures we have
implemented may not be effective in detecting all defects in our platform. In the event a
significant defect in our platform and associated systems and controls is realized, we could be



required to offer refunds, suspend the availability of our service offerings, or expend significant
resources to cure the defect, each of which could significantly harm our business and operating
results.

We may experience system failures, outages and/or disruptions of the functionality of our
platform. Such failures, delays and other problems could harm our reputation and business, cause
us to lose customers and expose us to customer liability.

We may experience system failures, outages and/or disruptions of our infrastructure, including
information technology system failures and network disruptions, cloud hosting and broadband
availability at in person and online experiences. Our operations could be interrupted or degraded
by any damage to or failure of: our computer software or hardware, or our customers’ or suppliers’
computer software or hardware; our network, our customers’ networks or our suppliers’ networks;
or our connections and outsourced service arrangements with third parties. Our systems and
operations are also vulnerable to damage or interruption from: power loss, transmission cable cuts
and other telecommunications and utility failures; hurricanes, fires, earthquakes, floods and other
natural disasters; a terrorist attack in the U.S. or in another country in which we operate;
interruption of service arising from facility migrations, resulting from changes in business
operations including acquisitions and planned data center migrations; computer viruses or
software defects; loss or misuse of proprietary information or customer data that compromises
security, confidentiality or integrity; or errors by our emplovyees or third-party service providers.
From time to time in the ordinary course of our business, our network nodes and other systems
experience temporary outages. As a means of ensuring continuity in the services we provide to our
community and partners, we have invested in system redundancies via partnerships with industry
leading cloud service providers, proactive alarm monitoring and other back-up infrastructure,
though we cannot assure you that we will be able to re-route our services over our back-up
facilities and provide continuous service to customers in all circumstances without material
degradation. Because many of our services play a critical role for our community and partners, any
damage to or failure of the infrastructure we rely on could disrupt or degrade the operation of our
network, our platform and the provision of our services and result in the loss of current and
potential community members and/or partners and harm our ability to conduct normal business
operations.

We use third-party services and technologies in connection with our business, and any disruption
to the provision of these services and technologies to us could result in negative publicity and a
slowdown in the growth of our users, which could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our business partially depends on services provided by, and relationships with, various third
parties, including cloud hosting and broadband providers, among others. To this end, when our
cloud hosting and broadband vendors experience outages, our services will be negatively impacted
and alternative resources will not be immediately available. In addition, certain third-party
software we use in our operations is currently publicly available free of charge. If the owner of any
such software decides to charge users or no longer makes the software publicly available, we may
need to incur significant costs to obtain licensing, find replacement software or develop it on our
own. If we are unable to obtain licensing, find or develop replacement software at a reasonable
cost, or at all, our business and operations may be adversely affected. We exercise no control over
the third-party vendors that we rely upon for cloud hosting, broadband and software service. If
such third parties increase their prices, fail to provide their services effectively, terminate their
service or agreements or discontinue their relationships with us, we could suffer service
interruptions, reduced revenues or increased costs, any of which may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we are unable to successfully grow our user base, compete effectively with other platforms, and
further monetize our platform, our business will suffer.



We have made, and are continuing to make, investments to enable our developers to design and
build compelling content and deliver it to our users on our platform. Existing and prospective
developers may not be successful in creating content that leads to and maintains user engagement
(including maintaining the quality of experiences) or they may fail to expand the types of
experiences that our developers can build for users, and other global entertainment companies,
online content platforms, and social platforms may entice our users and potential users away
from, or to spend less time with, our platform, each of which could adversely affect users’ interest
in our platform and lead to a loss of revenue opportunities and harm our results of operations.
Additionally, we may not succeed in further monetizing our platform and user base. As a result,
our user growth, user engagement, financial performance and ability to grow revenue could be
significantly harmed if: we fail to increase or maintain KPIs; our user growth outpaces our ability
to monetize our users, including if our user growth occurs in markets that are not profitable; we
fail to establish a base of our developers, creators, and users; we fail to provide the tools and
education to our developers and creators to enable them to monetize their experiences; we fail to
increase or maintain the amount of time spent on our platform, the number of experiences that
our users share and explore with friends, or the usage of our technology for our developers; we do
not develop and establish the social features of our platform, allowing it to more broadly serve the
entertainment, education, and business markets; we fail to increase penetration and engagement
across target age demographics; developers do not create engaging or new experiences for users;
users reduce their subscriptions for our services within our platform; or the experiences on our
platform do not maintain or gain popularity. If we are able to continue to grow, we will need to
manage our growth effectively, which could require expanding our internal IT systems,
technological operations infrastructure, financial infrastructure, and operating and administrative
systems and controls. In addition, we have expended in the past and may in the future expend
significant resources to launch new features and changes on our platform that we are unable to
monetize, which may significantly harm our business. Any future growth would add complexity to
our organization and require effective coordination across our organization, and an inability to do
so would adversely affect our business, financial conditions and results of operations. We provide
access to offerings within our platform that are subscription-based. While we intend for these
efforts to generate increased recurring revenues from our existing user base, they may cause users
to decrease their overall spend on our platform. Our ability to continue to attract and retain users
of our paid subscription services will depend in part on our ability to consistently provide our
subscribers with a quality experience. If our users do not perceive these offerings to be of value, or
if we introduce new or adjust existing features or pricing in a manner that is not favorably received
by them, we may not be able to attract and retain subscribers or be able to convince users to
become subscribers of such additional service offerings, and we may not be able to increase the
amount of recurring revenue from our user base. Subscribers may cancel their subscription to our
service for many reasons, including a perception that they do not use the service sufficiently, the
need to reduce household expenses, competitive services that provide a better value or experience
or as a result of changes in pricing. If our efforts to attract and retain subscribers are not
successful, our business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely impacted.

Growth and engagement of our user community depends upon effective interoperability with
mobile operating systems, networks, mobile devices and standards that we do not control.

We make our services available across a variety of mobile operating systems and devices. We are
dependent on the interoperability of our services with popular mobile devices and mobile
operating systems that we do not control, such as Android and i08. Any changes in such mobile
operating systems or devices that degrade the functionality of our services or give preferential
treatment to competitive services could adversely affect usage of our services. In order to deliver
high quality services, it is important that our services work well across a range of mobile operating
systems, networks, mobile devices and standards that we do not control. We may not be successful
in developing relationships with key participants in the mobile industry or in developing services
that operate effectively with these operating systems, networks, devices and standards. In the



event that it is difficult for our users to access and use our services, particularly on their mobile
devices, our user growth and user engagement could be harmed, and our business and operating
results could be adversely affected.

We plan to continue to make acquisitions and pursue other strategic transactions, which could
impact our financial condition or results of operations and may adversely affect the price of our
common stock.

As part of our business strategy, we have made and intend to continue to make acquisitions to add
specialized employees and complementary companies, products, or technologies, and from time to
time may enter into other strategic transactions such as investments and joint ventures. We may
not be able to find suitable acquisition candidates, and we may not be able to complete
acquisitions or other strategic transactions on favorable terms, or at all, including as a result of
regulatory challenges. In some cases, the costs of such acquisitions or other strategic transactions
may be substantial, and there is no assurance that we will realize expected synergies from future
growth and potential monetization opportunities for our acquisitions or a favorable return on
investment for our strategic investments. We may pay substantial amounts of cash or incur debt
to pay for acquisitions or other strategic transactions, which has occurred in the past and could
adversely affect our liquidity. The incurrence of indebtedness would also result in increased fixed
obligations and increased interest expense, and could also include covenants or other restrictions
that would impede our ability to manage our operations. We may also issue equity securities to
pay for acquisitions and may grant stock options or other equity awards to retain the employees of
acquired companies, which could increase our expenses, adversely affect our financial results, and
result in dilution to our stockholders. In addition, any acquisitions or other strategic transactions
we announce could be viewed negatively by users, marketers, developers, or investors, which may
adversely affect our business or the price of our common stock. We may also discover liabilities,
deficiencies, or other claims associated with the companies or assets we acquire that were not
identified in advance, which may result in significant unanticipated costs. The effectiveness of our
due diligence review and our ability to evaluate the results of such due diligence are dependent
upon the accuracy and completeness of statements and disclosures made or actions taken by the
companies we acquire or their representatives, as well as the limited amount of time in which
acquisitions are executed. In addition, we may fail to accurately forecast the financial impact of an
acquisition or other strategic transaction, including tax and accounting charges. Acquisitions or
other strategic transactions may also result in our recording of significant additional expenses to
our results of operations and recording of substantial finite-lived intangible assets on our balance
sheet upon closing. Any of these factors may adversely affect our financial condition or results of
operations.

We may encounter significant difficulties integrating acquired businesses.

The integration of any businesses is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. As a result,
we have devoted, and will continue to devote, significant management attention and resources to
integrating acquired businesses, including those acquired in the 2021 Acquisitions. The failure to
meet the challenges involved in integrating businesses and to realize the anticipated benefits of
any acquisition could cause an interruption of, or a loss of momentum in, the activities of our
combined business and could adversely affect our results of operations. The difficulties of
combining acquired businesses with our own include, among others; the diversion of management
attention to integration matters; difficulties in integrating functional roles, processes and
systems, including accounting systems; challenges in conforming standards, controls, procedures
and accounting and other policies, business cultures and compensation structures between the
two companies; difficulties in assimilating, attracting and retaining key personnel; challenges in
keeping existing clients and obtaining new clients; difficulties in achieving anticipated cost
savings, synergies, business opportunities and growth prospects from an acquisition; difficulties in
managing the expanded operations of a significantly larger and more complex business;
contingent liabilities, including contingent tax liabilities or litigation, that may be larger than



expected; and potential unknown liabilities, adverse consequences or unforeseen increased
expenses associated with an acquisition, including possible adverse tax consequences to the
combined business pursuant to changes in applicable tax laws or regulations. Many of these
factors are outside of our control, and any one of them could result in increased costs, decreased
expected revenues and diversion of management time and energy, all of which could adversely
impact our business and results of operations. These difficulties have been enhanced further
during the COVID-19 pandemic as a result of our office closures and work-from home policies,
which may hinder assimilation of key personnel. If we are not able to successfully integrate an
acquisition, if we incur significantly greater costs to achieve the expected synergies than we
anticipate or if activities related to the expected synergies have unintended consequences, our
business, financial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our online activities are subject to various laws and regulations relating to privacy and child
protection, which, if violated, could subject us to an increased risk of litigation and regulatory
actions.

In addition to our platform, we use third-party applications, websites, and social media platforms
to promote our service offerings and engage users, as well as monitor and collect certain
information about users in our online forums. A variety of laws and regulations have been adopted
in recent years aimed at protecting children using the internet such as the Children’s Online
Privacy and Protection Act of 1998 ("COPPA™). COPPA sets forth, among other things, a number of
restrictions on what website operators can present to children under the age of 13 and what
information can be collected from them. COPPA is of particular concern to us, and in an effort to
minimize our risk of potential exposure, we retained a COPPA expert as a consultant and have
posted a compliant privacy policy, terms of use and various other policies on our website. We
undertake significant effort to implement certain precautions to ensure that access to our
platform is COPPA compliant. Despite our efforts, no assurances can be given that such measures
will be sufficient to completely avoid exposure and COPPA violations, any of which could expose
us to significant liability, penalties, reputational harm and loss of revenue, among other things.

The laws and regulations concerning data privacy are continually evolving. Failure to comply with
these laws and regulations could harm our business.

Consumers are able to access our service offerings online through our platform. We collect and
store information about our consumers both personally identifying and non-personally
identifying information. Numerous federal, state and international laws address privacy, data
protection and the collection, storing, sharing, use, disclosure and protection of personally
identifiable information and other user data. Numerous states already have, and are looking to
expand, data protection legislation requiring companies like ours to consider solutions to meet
differing needs and expectations of creators and attendees. Outside the United States, personally
identifiable information and other user data is increasingly subject to legislation and regulations
in numerous jurisdictions around the world, the intent of which is to protect the privacy of
information that is collected, processed and transmitted in or from the governing jurisdiction.
Foreign data protection, privacy, information security, user protection and other laws and
regulations are often more restrictive than those in the United States. In particular, the European
Union and its member states traditionally have taken broader views as to types of data that are
subject to privacy and data protection laws and regulations and have imposed greater legal
obligations on companies in this regard. For example, in April 2016, European legislative bodies
adopted the General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR”), which became effective on May 25,
2018. The GDPR applies to any company established in the European Union as well as to those
outside of the European Union if they collect and use personal data in connection with the offering
of goods or services to individuals in the European Union or the monitoring of their behavior. The
GDPR enhances data protection obligations for processors and controllers of personal data,
including, for example, expanded disclosures about how personal information is to be used,
limitations on retention of information, mandatory data breach notification requirements and



onerous new obligations on service providers. Non-compliance with the GDPR may result in
monetary penalties of up to €20 million or 4% of annual worldwide revenue, whichever is higher.
In addition, some countries are considering or have passed legislation implementing data
protection requirements or requiring local storage and processing of data or similar requirements
that could increase the cost and complexity of delivering our services. The GDPR and other
changes in laws or regulations associated with the enhanced protection of certain types of
personal data could greatly increase our cost of providing our products and services or even
prevent us from offering certain services in jurisdictions in which we operate. The European
Commission is also currently negotiating a new ePrivacy Regulation that would address various
matters, including provisions specifically aimed at the use of cookies to identify an individual’s
online behavior, and any such ePrivacy Regulation may provide for new compliance obligations
and significant penalties. Any of these changes to European Union data protection law or its
interpretation could disrupt and/or harm our business. Further, following a referendum in June
2016 in which voters in the United Kingdom approved an exit from the European Union, the
United Kingdom government has initiated a process to leave the European Union, which has
created uncertainty with regard to the regulation of data protection in the United Kingdom. In
particular, although a Data Protection Bill designed to be consistent with the GDPR is pending in
the United Kingdom's legislative process, it is unclear whether the United Kingdom will enact data
protection laws or regulations designed to be consistent with the GDPR and how data transfers to
and from the United Kingdom will be regulated. The interpretation and application of many
privacy and data protection laws are, and will likely remain, uncertain, and it is possible that these
laws may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent with our existing data
management practices or product features. Although player interaction on our platform is subject
to our privacy policies, end user license agreements ("EULAs™), and terms of service, if we fail to
comply with our posted privacy policies, EULAs, or terms of service, or if we fail to comply with
existing privacy-related or data protection laws and regulations, it could result in proceedings or
litigation against us by governmental authorities or others, which could result in fines or
judgments against us, damage our reputation, impact our financial condition and/or harm our
business. In addition to government regulation, privacy advocacy and industry groups may
propose new and different self-regulatory standards that either legally or contractually apply to
us. Any inability to adequately address privacy, data protection and data security concerns or
comply with applicable privacy, data protection or data security laws, regulations, policies and
other obligations could result in additional cost and liability to us, damage our reputation, inhibit
sales and harm our business. Further, our failure, and/or the failure by the various third-party
service providers and partners with which we do business, to comply with applicable privacy
policies or federal, state or similar international laws and regulations or any other obligations
relating to privacy, data protection or information security, or any compromise of security that
results in the unauthorized release of personally identifiable information or other user data, or the
perception that any such failure or compromise has occurred, could damage our reputation, result
in a loss of creators or attendees, discourage potential creators and attendees from trying our
platform and/or result in fines and/or proceedings by governmental agencies and/or users, any of
which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
In addition, given the breadth and depth of changes in data protection obligations, ongoing
compliance with evolving interpretation of the GDPR and other regulatory requirements requires
time and resources and a review of the technology and systems currently in use against the
requirements of GDPR and other regulations.

We may be held liable for information or content displayed on, retrieved from or linked to our
platform, or distributed to our users.

Our interactive live streaming platform enables users and creators to exchange information and
engage in various other online activities. Although we require our users and creators to register
their real name, we do not require user identifications used and displayed while using the platform
to contain any real-name information, and hence we are unable to verify the sources of all the



information posted by our users and creators. In addition, because a majority of the
communications on our online and in person platform is conducted in real time, we are unable to
examine the content generated by users and creators before they are posted or streamed.
Therefore, it is possible that users and creators may engage in illegal, obscene or incendiary
conversations or activities, including publishing of inappropriate or illegal content that may be
deemed unlawful. If any content on our platform is deemed illegal, obscene or incendiary, or if
appropriate licenses and third-party consents have not been obtained, claims may be brought
against us for defamation, libel, negligence, copyright, patent or trademark infringement, other
unlawful activities or other theories and claims based on the nature and content of the
information delivered on or otherwise accessed through our platform. Moreover, the costs of
compliance may continue to increase when more content is made available on our platform as a
result of our growing base of users and creators, which may adversely affect our results of
operations.

Intensified government regulation of the Internet industry could restrict our ability to maintain or
increase the level of traffic to our platform as well as our ability to capture other market
opportunities.

The Internet industry is increasingly subject to strict scrutiny. New laws and regulations may be
adopted from time to time to address new issues that come to the authorities’ attention. We may
not timely obtain or maintain all the required licenses or approvals or make all the necessary
filings in the future. We also cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain the required licenses
or approvals if we plan to expand into other Internet businesses. If we fail to obtain or maintain
any of the required licenses or approvals or make the necessary filings, we may be subject to
various penalties, which may disrupt our business operations or derail our business strategy, and
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our technology, content and brands are subject to the threat of piracy, unauthorized copying and
other forms of intellectual property infringement.

We regard our technology, content and brands as proprietary and take measures to protect our
technology, content and brands and other confidential information from infringement. Piracy and
other forms of unauthorized copying and use of our technology, content and brands are persistent,
and policing is difficult. Further, the laws of some countries in which our products are or may be
distributed either do not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of
the United States or are poorly enforced. Legal protection of our rights may be ineffective in such
countries. In addition, although we take steps to enforce and police our rights, factors such as the
proliferation of technology designed to circumvent the protection measures used by our business
partners or by us, the availability of broadband access to the Internet, the refusal of Internet
service providers or platform holders to remove infringing content in certain instances, and the
proliferation of online channels through which infringing product is distributed all have
contributed to an expansion in unauthorized copying of our technology, content and brands.

Third parties may register trademarks or domain names or purchase internet search engine
keywords that are similar to our registered trademark or pending trademarks, brands or websites,
or misappropriate our data and copy our platform, all of which could cause confusion, divert users
and creators away from our platform and service offerings, or harm our reputation.

Competitors and other third parties may purchase (i) trademarks that are similar to our
trademarks and (ii) keywords that are confusingly similar to our brands or websites in Internet
search engine advertising programs and in the header and text of the resulting sponsored links or
advertisements in order to divert users and creators from us to their websites. Preventing such
unauthorized use is inherently difficult. If we are unable to prevent such unauthorized use,
competitors and other third parties may continue to drive potential users and creators away from
our platform to competing, irrelevant or potentially offensive platforms, which could harm our
reputation and cause us to lose revenue.



We have granted, and may continue to grant, share incentive awards, which may result in
increased share-based compensation expenses.

We adopted our A2022 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “2022 Plan™) in September 2022, for
purposes of granting share-based compensation awards to employees, directors and consultants
to incentivize their performance and align their interests with ours. Under the 2022 Plan, we are
authorized to grant options to purchase shares of common stock of our Company, restricted share
units to receive shares of common stock and restricted shares of common stock. We believe the
granting of share incentive awards is important to our ability to attract and retain employees, and
we will continue to grant share incentive awards to employees in the future. As a result, our
expenses associated with share-based compensation may increase, which may have an adverse
effect on our results of operations.

Uncertainty in global economic conditions could negatively affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We have significant intangible assets recorded on our consolidated balance sheets as of December
31, 2021. We will continue to evaluate the recoverability of the carrying amount of our intangible
assets on an ongoing basis, and we may incur substantial impairment charges, which would
adversely affect our consolidated financial results. There can be no assurance that the outcome of
such reviews in the future will not result in substantial impairment charges. Impairment
assessment inherently involves judgment as to assumptions about expected future cash flows and
the impact of market conditions on those assumptions. Future events and changing market
conditions may impact our assumptions as to prices, costs, holding periods or other factors that
may result in changes in our estimates of future cash flows. Although we believe the assumptions
we used in testing for impairment are reasonable, significant changes in any one of our
assumptions could produce a significantly different result.

I already sent an exhaustive list of risk factors that should be included here
See above



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s
holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of this Offering Statement

filing.

Stockholder Name |Numher of Securities Owned|[Type of Security D‘r.-.rnedIPercentage
Derek Pew 875,208 [Common Stock 24.4%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized equity stock. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the
Company will be offering up to 493,999 of Commeon Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 10,000,000 with a total of 3,720,004 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share. Please see voting rights of securities sold in this offering below.,
Material Rights

The total amount outstanding includes 140,004 shares to be issued pursuant to stock options
issued.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offeri

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the
“CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the
power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to, consistent with this instrument and on
behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and communications,
(iii) execute any instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in
the exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or
appropriate in the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest. Such proxy
and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the Subscriber is an individual, will
survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is
an entity, will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding
the Securities. However, the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment
underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities
Act of 1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a registration
statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock,

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes by proxy to
the CEO of the Company. Even if you were to receive control of your voting rights, as a minority
holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the corporate actions of the company, including
additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its
significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering
may have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.



Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a company could be
diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the company issues
more shares, the percentage of the company that you own will go down, even though the value of
the company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in
number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering,
another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees exercising
stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or
warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience
value dilution, with each share being worth less than beftore, and control dilution, with the total
percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a
reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers
dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any
earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:

* Inan [PO;
* To the company;
* To an accredited investor; and

* To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the
purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the
equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or other similar
circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $200,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 80,000
Use of proceeds: General Operating
Date: September 01, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4{a)(2)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our
operations together with our financial statements and related notes appearing at the end of this
Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-looking statements reflecting our
current expectations that invelve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events
may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number
of factors, including those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this



Offering Memorandum.
Results of Operations

How long can the business operate without revenue:

The Company does not have any direct expenses and could continue operations indefinitely
without revenue generation if necessary. The Company’s acquired businesses generate revenue
and have expenses. To the extent the revenue of those businesses fails to exceed their expenses,
the Company may choose to fund those operations from its cash holdings. The Company believes
that it has cash on hand to fund deficits through the end of the year.

Foreseeable major expenses based on projections:

The Company does not have major expenses at this time. The funds from the offering will be used
primarily to further develop the Company's platform and expand operations but are not necessary
for maintaining current operations.

Future operational challenges:

The Company intends to develop maobile applications, streamline and integrate the functions of its
acquired businesses and build a more robust video production and distribution capability. The
Company does not have the capital on hand to do that and the success of the raise will determine
the extent to which the Company can achieve its goals.

Future challenges related to capital resources:

The Company will be expending money in advance of revenue growth and it will need to manage
its resources to ensure that it maintains sufficient working capital to sustain the Company until its
revenue goals are recognized.

Future milestones and events:

The Company’s subsidiaries have a number of significant projects that are at various early stages
of deployment. The success of these projects will greatly impact the Company’s ability to use the
capital raised to build out its operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of
credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of July 12, 2022, the Company had capital resources available in the form of cash and amounts
due from related parties of $124,940.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to
your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company's operational growth.

These funds are required to support the integration of the acquired businesses, the development of
mobile platforms, and the expansion of our production and broadcast capabilities.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds



that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding
campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the Company. Of the
total funds that our Company has, nearly all will be made up of funds raised from the
crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What expenses is
this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to
operate indefinitely. The Company does not have any direct expenses currently.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to
operate indefinitely. The Company does not have any direct expenses currently.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company? (Required capital
contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises, etc...)

Currently, the Company has not contemplated additional future sources of capital. However,
should the crowdfunding offering not raise sufficient capital to fund its development goals then
additional sources of capital may be considered at that time.

Indebtedness

The Company does not have any material terms of indebtedness.
Related Party Transactions

The Company has not conducted any related party transactions
Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $9,300,010.00
Valuation Details:

TheYard.gg, Inc. has acquired the combination of two businesses, Harena Data, Inc. and UMG
Media. Harena's most recent funding round in 2022 was at a valuation of $11.1 million prior to its
acquisition of UMG Media's assets.

On September 1, 2022, immediately following the acquisition, the founders of the Company
invested $200,000 into the Company at the same pre-market valuation as this offering.

The Company believes that the combination of Harena and UMG along with the equalized play
technology that Harena has developed with WTFast will create the only single platform capable of
supporting both sanctioned play as well as peer-to-peer play for gamers where all remote play can
be standardized in terms of ping (latency).



As such, it plans to provide a single login environment for the management of all gameplay and
digital asset transfers while providing all services that gamers will need in a single environment:
robust video production and distribution to an existing base of over 230,000 Twitch viewers, and
to established platforms like XBOX, Roku, Amazon Fire, and Samsung as well as team gear and fan
gear solutions and educational assets.

Our pre-money valuation is based on the assumption that the opportunity, total addressable
market, financial projections, and the makeup of the founders and team can achieve the growth
and expansion goals as set out in this offering. The valuation was calculated by incorporating the
below:

Market Growth & Trends

The global metaverse market size was estimated at USD 38.85 billion in 2021. It is expected to
expand at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 39.4% from 2022 to 2030. Major factors
expected to drive the revenue growth include a growing focus on integrating digital and physical
worlds using the Internet, increasing momentum and popularity of Video Gaming, Mixed Reality
(MR), Augmented Reality (AR), and Virtual Reality (VR).

-https:/www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/metaverse-market-report

Management's Prior Achievements & Success

Company management and its board have been involved in numerous start-ups and have
significant legal, financial, technological, gaming, media, educational, and team gear experience
and expertise.

Derek Pew our chairman was involved in the Merger if RJR Reynolds and Nabisco, Time and
Warner, and the creation of Verizon through the merger of Bell Atlantic and NYNEX. As an
entrepreneur, he ran and sold a long-distance phone service reseller, a fiber-based telco serving
the financial industry, the wireless system in the City of Philadelphia and has raised over §11
million for the two companies he currently sits on the board of, HashWatt and The Yard.gg
(through Harena Data)

Bill Dever was one of the innovators behind video streaming. He founded Spark interactive which
launch the interactive television revolution in the MidWest, by deploving in Indianapolis, Akron,
and Chicagoland. He pioneered the use of dark fiber and wide-area ethernet deployment. Bill has
been involved in lower-budget feature filmmaking since 1988. He has fulfilled the role of director,
writer, and producer, and when the budget was particularly tight, even acted (he works cheap). He
is the founder of The B Movie Celebration and edits the website bmovienation, a site dedicated to
shining a light on genre film-making. Mr. Dever is also involved in re-generating excitement for
drive-in moviegoing and introducing new generations to seeing a movie under the stars.

Mr. Dever is also experienced in the development of a suite of IP video applications comprising
web, streaming audio, streaming video, and cable television. He is also experienced in providing
consulting services in the development of interactive IP set-top boxes for North and South
American deployments and the deployment of interactive video tests in Venezuela, Chile, the
Dominican Republic, and Trump Tower for NEC Japan. Mr. Dever was responsible for managing
the deployment of video services in Cleveland, Akron, and Chicago using the State of Washington
in conjunction with the Public Utility District. He was also responsible for developing the first
MPEGZ,/DVD authoring facility in the Prairies and has produced DVDs for Madacy, UAV, ESX,
Apple Entertainment, and Front Row.

Business Partnerships & Relationships




The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary Harena currently has agreements in place with Indiana
Sports Corp, a co-development partnership with Iconic Engine, a technology agreement with
WTFast, an agreement with the Mid-Eastern Athletic Conference, The Canadian Collegiate Esport
League, Purdue University, 21 State Soccer Associations, and Future Today.

Fully-Diluted Outstanding Shares

The Company currently has 3,720,004 shares outstanding on a fully-diluted basis. Multiplying this
amount by the price per share of $2.50 produces a pre-money valuation of $9,300,010.

Conclusion

Based on its analysis of the above factors, the Company believes the pre-money valuation of
$9,300,010 is accurate.

Disclaimers
The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this calculation,
we have assumed: (i) all preferred stock is converted to common stock; (i) all outstanding
options, warrants, and other securities with a right to acquire shares, if any, are exercised,; and (iii)
any shares reserved for issuance under a stock plan are issued.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of 510,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

® StartEngine Service Fees
94.5%

Fees for certain services provided by StartEngine

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,234,997.50, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

®» Marketing
20.0%
While UMG has over 2.5 million active user emails and Harena's GYQ Score has over 60,000,
both platforms need to be marketed again as part of the Company’s new solution.

o Company Employment
35.0%
The Company has no employees and is acquiring two businesses with limited employees. In
order to grow the business, the Company will have to hire employees in a number of key
areas including operations, marketing and sales, technology and finance.

® Operations
25.0%
Technological development of the Company portal and companion mobile services as well as
media distribution technological enhancements.

Working Capital



14.5%
The Company will continue to have cash flow negative months for the foreseeable future.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best
interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its
website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may
be found on the Company’s website at http://thevard.gg/ (thevard.gg).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer
than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a){(6) of the
Securities Act, including any payvment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of
redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/theyard

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR TheYard.gg,
Inc.

[See attached]
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
theyard.gg, Inc.
Wilmington, Delaware

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of theyard.gg, Inc. (the "Company,”), which comprise
the balance sheet as of July 12, 2022, and the related statement of operations, statement of shareholders’ equity
(deficit), and cash flows for the period from Inception (July 12, 2022), and the related notes to the financial
statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and
making inquiries of company management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Going Concern

As discussed in Note 8, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

%@tﬁpm rS

September 28, 2022
Los Angeles, California




THEYARD.GG INC.
BALANCE SHEET

(UNAUDITED)

As of July 12, 2022

(USD S in Dollars)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash & cash equivalents 5 84,940
Due from Related Parties 40,000

Total current assets 124,940

Total assets S 124,940

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Total liabilities -
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock 358
Additional Paid in Capital 124,582

Retained earnings/(Accumulated Deficit) -

Total stockholders' equity 124,940

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity S 124,940

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THEYARD.GG INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

Inception July 12,2022

(USD S in Dollars)
Net revenue S
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Operating expenses
General and administrative
Sales and marketing

Total operating expenses

Operating income/{loss)

Interest expense
Other Loss/({Income)

Incomef(Loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision/{Benefit) for income taxes

Net income/(Net Loss) S

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THEYARD.GG INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER" EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)

Common Stock Additional Paid In

Retained earnings/ Total Shareholders'
[in , SUS) Shares Amount Capital (Accumulated Deficit) Ecyuity
Inception date -July 12, 2022 .
Issuance of Commaon Stock 3580000 &% 358 5 124,582 ] 124,940
MNet income/(loss) - - 5 - -
Balance—July 12, 2022 3,580,000 5 358 5 124,582 5 - 5 124,940

Ser occomponying notes to finonciol statements.



THEYARD.GG INC.
STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows

(UNAUDITED)

As of inception July 12, 2022

(USD 5 in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income/{loss) 5 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaids and Other Current Assets (40,000)
Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities (40,000)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property and Equipment -

Met cash provided/{used) in investing activities -

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from stock issuance 124,940
Met cash provided/{used) by financing activities 124,940
Change in cash 84,940
Cash—beginning of year -
Cash—end of year 5 84,940

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest 5 -
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 5 -

OTHER NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Purchase of property and equipment not yet paid for 5 -
Issuance of equity in return for note 5 -
Issuance of equity in return for accrued payroll and other liabilities 5 -

See accompanying notes to financial statements,



THEYARD.GG, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ForR YEAR ENDED TO JULY 11' 2022

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

theyard.gg, Inc. was incorporated on July 12, 2022, in the state of Delaware, The financial statements of theyard.gg,
Inc. (which may be referred to as the “Company”, "we”, "us”, or “our”) are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.5. GAAP"). The Company’'s headquarters are located
in Wilmington, Delaware.

The Yard is a holding company that will operate through its wholly owned subsidiary Harena Data Inc. upon completion
of the merger. Harena provides both physical and virtual play environments for video gamers supporting both
sanctioned (governed by a third-party) play and peer-to-peer play. It combines that with latency balancing technology
for remote play, video production and distribution capabilities, an extensive twitch audience and team and fan gear and
educational offerings with the intent to build the ultimate one log in portal for gamers in the metaverse,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("US GAAP"). The Company has adopted a calendar year end of December 31, as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks. The Company's cash is deposited in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management believes are creditworthy. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank depaosit
accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of July 12, 2022, the Company’'s cash and cash equivalents
did not exceeded FDIC insured limits.

Income Taxes

The Company is a C corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability
method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is provided on deferred tax assets if it is determined that
it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company records interest, net of any
applicable related income tax benefit, on potential income tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense.
The Company records tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized or paid, including in connection with the resolution of any related appeals or other legal
processes.



THEYARD.GG, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO JuLY 12, 2022

Accordingly, the Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits based on the amounts that are
more likely than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority. The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it
believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000, At
times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Revenue Recognition

The Company is currently pre-revenue and will follow the provisions and the disclosure requirements described in ASU
2014-09 also referred to as Topic 606. Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using the following
steps: Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: Revenues are recognized when or as
control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers,

Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with the customer: the Company determines the existence of a
contract with a customer when the contract is mutually approved; the rights of each party in relation to the services to
be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the services can be identified, the customer has the capacity
and intention to pay, and the contract has commercial substance.

2] Identification of performance obligations in the contract: performance obligations consist of a promised in
a contract (written or oral) with a customer to transfer to the customer either a good or service {or a bundle of goods
or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer,

3) Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: revenues are recognized when or
as control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers.

The company is 2 holding company that will operate through its wholly owned subsidiary Harena Data Inc. upon
completion of the merger. Harena provides both physical and virtual play environments for video gamers supporting
both sanctioned (governed by a third-party) play and peer-to-peer play.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (such as cash
and cash eguivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued
expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments).

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used
in valuation technigues. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1—CQuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2—QObservable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data.

-7 -



THEYARD.GG, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ForR YEAR ENDED TO JULY 11' 2022

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company's assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

Subseqguent Events

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 28, 2022, which is the date the
financial statements were issued.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

FASB issued ASU No, 2019-02, leases, that requires organizations that lease assets, referred to as "lessees”, to recognize
on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases with lease terms of
more than twelve months. ASU 2019-02 will also require disclosures to help investors and other financial statement
users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases and will include
gualitative and quantitative requirements. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, and
early application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on the financial
statements and related disclosures.

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC, There have been a number of ASUs to date, including
those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) provide
supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a
significant impact on our financial statements.

3. CAPITALIZATION AND EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 20,000,000 shares of Common Shares at a par value of 50.0001. As of July 22, 2022,
3,580,000 Common Stock have been issued and are outstanding.

4. DEBT

The Company currently has no debt.

5. RELATED PARTY

The company approved an interest free funds in the amount of 540,000 to the related party Harena Data Inc to financing
its business operations. The company is in the final stage of an acquisition of Harena Data Inc., which have been
approved by both parties and it is now waiting for approval from Delaware Secretary of State. In September, the
Company advanced an additional 550,000 to Harena Data Inc.



THEYARD.GG, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ForR YEAR ENDED TO JULY 11' 2022

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies

The Company's operations are subject to a variety of local and state regulation. Failure to comply with one or more of
those regulations could result in fines, restrictions on its operations, or losses of permits that could result in the
Company ceasing operations.

Litigation and Claims

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of operations in the normal
course of business. As of July 12, 2022, there were no pending or threatened lawsuits that could reasonably be expected
to have a material effect on the results of the Company’s operations.

7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for the period from July 12, 2022, through September 28, 2022, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

In September, the Company raised 575,000 from issuance of 30,000 Commeon Stock at a price of $2.50. The Company
distributed an additional 550,000 interest free funds to Harena Data Inc.

The Company is in the final stage of an acquisition of Harena Data Inc., which has been approved by both parties and it
is now waiting for approval from Delaware Secretary of State.

There have been no other events or transactions during this time which would have a material effect on these financial
statements.

8. GOING CONCERN

The Company lacks significant working capital and has only recently commenced operations. We will incur significant
additional costs before significant revenue is achieved, These matters raise substantial doubt about the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. During the next twelve months, the Company intends to fund its operations with
funding from their proposed Regulation Crowdfunding campaign, and additional debt and/or equity financing as
determined to be necessary. There are no assurances that management will be able to raise capital on terms acceptable
to the Company. If the Company is unable to obtain sufficient amounts of additional capital, they may be required to
reduce the scope of our planned development, which could harm the business, financial condition and operating results.
The balance sheet and related financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the